
 

 1 

  

 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONDAY, November 07, 2022 
10:00 A.M.  

(Teleconference Meeting) 
 

Telecon:  
www.ierca.org/calendar 

+1 415-856-9169   United States, San Francisco (Toll) 

Conference ID: 228 324 545# 
 

PURSUANT TO AB 361, IERCA BOARD MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH 

TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-

19. THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON. 

 
TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 

In all efforts to prevent the spread of COVID-19, until further notice, the Inland Empire Regional 
Composting Authority will be holding all Board meetings by teleconferencing. 
The meeting will be accessible at: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 228 324 545# 

  
The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by calling into the number 
provided above. Public comments may also be submitted to the Recording Secretary at 
afernandez@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. Comments will be 
distributed to the Board of Directors. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
OF THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons wishing to 
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete 
and submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which are available on the table in the 
Board Room.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
 
 

http://www.ierca.org/calendar
tel:+1%20415-856-9169,,2000277# 
mailto:afernandez@ieua.org


2 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

INTRODUCTIONS 
Introduction of Arin Boughan, Acting Manager of Regional Composting 
Authority.  

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11-01
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Regional
Composting Authority, making certain findings and determinations
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference.

B. MINUTES
The Board will be asked to approve the minutes from the August 01, 2022,
regular meeting.

C. INVESTMENT AND DISBURSEMENT REPORT
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve for the months of
July 2022 - September 2022:

1. Total disbursements in the amount of $1,916,758.35 during July 1, 2022-
September 30, 2022.

There were no new investments during this period.

2. ACTION ITEMS

A. DESIGNATION OF IERCA TREASURER
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Javier Chagoyen-
Lazaro, Director of Finance and Accounting for the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency (IEUA), as the IERCA Treasurer.

B. COMPOST TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AMENDMENT
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve a contract amendment with an increase of up to $150,000
each with Viramontes Express, Inc. and with Eggleton Trucking, Inc. for
compost transportation services through June 30, 2023;



3 

2. Approve a budget amendment for other contractual services in the
amount of $300,000 to account for compost transportation contract
amendments; and

3. Authorize the Project Manager to finalize and execute the amendments
as needed.

C. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 CARRY FORWARD BUDGET AMENDMENT
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the carry forward for 
open encumbrances and related budget in the amount of $153,552.56 from 
FY 2021/22 to FY 2022/23.

D. ADOPTION OF DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT AND INVESTMENT FUND 
SIGNATORY RESOLUTIONS
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-11-2, authorizing and designating 
signatories for depository agreement, depository cards, deposits, 
transfers, checks, and withdrawal of funds.

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-11-3, authorizing participation in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund and designating signatories for the deposit and 
withdrawal of funds.

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-11-4, authorizing investment of monies in the 
Los Angeles County Pooled Surplus Investment Fund. 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

C. ASSET MANAGEMENT UPDATE

4. DIRECTOR COMMENTS

Next regular meeting is scheduled for Monday, February 06, 2023, at 10:00
a.m.

5. ADJOURN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Recording Secretary (909-993-1744), 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so 
that the Authority can make reasonable arrangements.



 

 4 

 

 
Declaration of Posting 
 
I, Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority, hereby certify that a 
copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. at the Los Angeles County Sanitation District 1955 Workman Mill 
Road, Whittier, CA and at the IERCA’s Administrative Building, 12645 Sixth Street, Rancho Cucamonga, CA and at 
the IEUA’s main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Chino, CA on Wednesday, November 02, 2022. 
 
________________________________________ 
Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary 



           
CONSENT 

CALENDAR 
ITEM 

 

1A 
 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 

EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY, MAKING CERTAIN 

FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES 

FOR CONDUCTING MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 

WHEREAS, Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (“IERCA”) is a joint powers 

authority formed on February 27, 2002, as a separate public agency from its Members; and  

  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board of Directors of IERCA are conducted in open and 

public settings in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) so that any member of 

the public may attend, participate and watch the Authority’s Board of Directors conduct their 

business; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency pursuant to 

Government Code section 8625 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and has recommended, together 

with local officials, measures for social distancing to assist in abating the spread of COVID-19; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 which, 

among other things, suspended certain Brown Act rules governing the use of teleconferencing of 

local agency board meetings; and 

 

           WHEREAS, Executive Order N-29-20 expired on September 30, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the California legislature has enacted, and the Governor has signed into law, 

AB 361 amending portions of Government Code section 54953, allowing for the continued use of 

teleconferencing for local agency board meetings while suspending the conditions and restrictions 

of Government Code section 54953(b)(3) if the legislative body of the local agency makes certain 

findings; and 

 

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-

02-07, making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 7, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-03-

01, again making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 



Resolution No. 2022-11-01 

Findings and Determinations Regarding  

Teleconference Meetings  

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-04-

01, again making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-05-01, 

again making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2022, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-06-02, 

again making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2022 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2022-08-

01, again making certain factual findings and determinations, and authorizing the continued use of 

teleconferencing for IERCA Board meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors must now determine whether to extend the effective 

period of Resolution 2022-08-01 an additional 30 days, making the appropriate factual findings in 

support thereof;   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Inland 

Empire Regional Composting Authority hereby make the following findings and determinations: 

 

SECTION 1. The Governor has proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020 which 

continues. 

 

SECTION 2. The Governor and local officials have promoted the use of social distancing 

as a method to abate the spread of COVID-19 within the community. The Board of Directors finds 

that conducting in person meetings of the IERCA Board of Directors would be inimical to social 

distancing and would present imminent risks to the health or safety of the attendees and conducting 

meetings by teleconference would diminish that risk. 

 

SECTION 3. The Board of Directors will continue to conduct Board meetings by 

teleconference in compliance with Government Code 54953(e) until such time as the Governor 

has terminated the state of emergency and the risk to health and safety of meeting  attendees is 

sufficiently diminished or as otherwise required by law. Notice of meetings and posted agendas 



Resolution No. 2022-11-01 

Findings and Determinations Regarding  

Teleconference Meetings  

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

will contain information which allows members of the public to access the meeting and address 

the Board of Directors and offer public comment including an opportunity for all persons to attend 

via a call-in option or an internet-based service option.  

 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 

effective for 30 days or until such time as the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in 

accordance with Government Code 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which meetings of the 

Board of Directors may be conducted by teleconference without compliance with Government 

Code 54953(b)(3).  

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 2022-11-01 

Findings and Determinations Regarding  

Teleconference Meetings  

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

ADOPTED this 7th day of November 2022, 

      

 

____________________________________ 

Jon Blickenstaff Chairperson of the Inland 

Empire Regional Composting Authority  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Paul Hofer 

Vice Chairperson



Resolution No. 2022-11-01 

Findings and Determinations Regarding  

Teleconference Meetings  

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  ) 

 

 

 

 I, Paul Hofer, Vice Chairperson of the Inland Empire Regional Composting 

Authority, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-11-01, 

was adopted at a regular meeting on November 7, 2022, of said Authority by the 

following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Paul Hofer 

Vice Chairperson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



           
CONSENT 

CALENDAR 
ITEM 

 

1B 
 

 



1 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY (IERCA) 

AUGUST 01, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via video/teleconference: 
Jon Blickenstaff, Chairperson 
Paul Hofer, Vice Chairperson 
Margaret Finlay, Director 
Jasmin A. Hall, Director 

DIRECTORS ABSENT 
Robert Ferrante, Director  
Shivaji Deshmukh, Director 

STAFF PRESENT or via video/teleconference 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Project Manager, IERCA 
Mike Sullivan, Assistant Project Manager, IERCA 
Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary, IERCA 
Martin Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel 
Alex Lopez, Acting Budget Officer, IEUA 
Randy Lee, Director of Operations and Maintenance, IEUA 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary, Office Manager, IEUA 
Marcus Coulombe, Compost Sales Coordinator, IERCA 
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager, IEUA 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager, IEUA 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts and Procurement, IEUA 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the IERCA was held at the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency Headquarters building located at 6075 Kimball Ave, Chino, California and via 
video/teleconference on the above date. 

Chairperson Blickenstaff, called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. and he led the pledge of 
allegiance to the flag. Recording Secretary, Adrianne Fernandez, took a roll call and established 
a quorum was present.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There we no public comments. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There we no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 

INTRODUCTIONS 
None. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. MINUTES

The Board approved the minutes from the June 6, 2022, special meeting.

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-08-01
Martin Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel, provided an explanation of the 
COVID-19 executive order that had expired pertaining to virtual meetings and 
the implementation of AB361 Amending the Brown Act, allowing the 



 

2 

continuance of teleconference meetings for up to 30 days at a time with the 
Adoption of a Resolution. 

 
C. INVESTMENT AND DISBURSEMENT REPORT  

The Board of Directors approved the months of April 2022 - June 2022: 
 
1. Total disbursements in the amount of $3,223,051.05, including  

 
2. Investments of $1,000,000 in Los Angeles County Treasurer Pool Surplus 
Investment Find of June 14, 2022.  
 

D. ADOPTION OF DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT AND INVESTMENT FUND 
SIGNATORY RESOLUTIONS 
The Board of Directors:  

 

1. Adopted Resolution No. 2022-8-2, authorizing and designating signatories 
for depository agreement, depository cards, deposits, transfers, checks, and 
withdrawal of funds.  

 

2. Adopted Resolution No. 2022-8-3, authorizing participation in the Local   
Agency Investment Fund and designating signatories for the deposit and 
withdrawal of funds. 

 

3. Adopted Resolution No. 2022-8-4, authorizing investment of monies in the 
Los Angeles County Pooled Surplus Investment Fund. 

 
Moved by Director Hall, seconded by Director Finlay, the motion carried unanimously. 
The Board of Directors approved the Consent Calendar Items by the following vote: 

 
Ayes: Blickenstaff, Hofer, Hall, Finlay 
Noes: None 
Absent: Deshmukh, Ferrante 
Abstain: None 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
A. COVID-19 UPDATE 

Jeff Ziegenbein, Project Manager, IERCA, provided an update on current Covid-
19 cases and percentages in the County of San Bernardino and advised the 
Agency is following Cal/OSHA and California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) requirements.  

INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 

 
B. PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT  

Jeff Ziegenbein briefed the Board on the IERCF’s average biosolids rate and 
revenue and gave a KPI’s overview. As a follow up from the Board Meeting 
held on May 02, 2022, Jeff Ziegenbein provided an update on time spent by 
staff to resolve the SCAQMD NOV at 55 hours and advised staff would 
continue to monitor the issue. Chairperson Blickenstaff requested the Board 
be updated by email notification if there any changes regarding the NOV prior 
to the next Board Meeting.  

INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 

 



 

3 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER 
ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

    Alex Lopez, Acting Budget Officer, presented the quarterly report ending June 
30, 2022, with total cash, investments and restricted deposits equaled 
$5,209,270 reflecting an increase of $57,286 in comparison to the March 
balance of $5,151,984. He explained the decrease was primarily due to the 
increases in Los Angeles County Pooled Investment and LAIF interest rates. 

INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 

 
DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
None. 
 

 With no further business, Chairperson Blickenstaff adjourned the meeting at 10:19 a.m.  
 
 
______________________________ 
Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary 
APPROVED:    
 



           
CONSENT 

CALENDAR 
ITEM 

 

1C 
 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency  Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

***** TR_Investment Report 

Date: November 7, 2022 

To: Honorable Board of Directors 

From: Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro 
Acting Treasurer 

Subject: Investment and Disbursement Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve for the months of July 2022 - 
September 2022: 

1. Total disbursements in the amount of $1,916,758.35.

2. There were no new investments during July 1, 2022 – September 30, 2022.

BACKGROUND 

The July - September 2022 disbursement activity includes check numbers 8858-8903 in the 
amount of $175,492.26 and ACH and Wire Transfer payments of $1,741,266.09 for vendor 
payments and investment. A detailed listing of the check register and electronic disbursements 
(ACH/Wire) is attached. 

Payment Type Checks 
From – To 

Transactions Total Amount 

Check 8858-8893   46 $     175,492.26 
ACH 157 $  1,740,087.09 
Wire Transfer   1  $         1,179.00 
TOTAL 131 $  1,916,758.35 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 

None. 

IMPACT ON BUDGET 

The total cash and position of the Authority is reduced by the amount of authorized disbursements 
and investment.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B180E44B-6A4E-4A33-8EAF-8B9DC5194870















































           ACTION 
ITEM 

 2A 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency                                  Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:       November 7, 2022 

 

To:       Honorable Board of Directors 

 

From:       Jeffrey Ziegenbein 

       Project Manager 

 

     Mike Sullivan 

     Assistant Project Manager 

 

Subject:      Designation of IERCA Treasurer – Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of 

Finance and Accounting for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), as the IERCA Treasurer.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The IERCA Board designated Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro as Acting Treasurer to the IERCA on 

November 1, 2021, after the retirement of the former Treasurer, Ms. Christina Valencia. Mr. 

Chagoyen-Lazaro has worked closely with the IERCF project for several years, is highly qualified 

to assume the position of Treasurer, and successfully filled the position of Acting Treasurer for 

nearly a year. As previously reported, IEUA was in the process of recruiting a replacement for Ms. 

Valencia and completed that recruitment in July 2022 hiring Ms. Kristine Day as Assistant General 

Manager. Ms. Day reviewed Mr. Chagoyen-Lazaro’s performance as Acting Treasurer and 

qualifications and recommends that the IERCA Board appoint Mr. Chagoyen-Lazaro for the 

position of Treasurer. The IERCA Treasurer signs contracts, change orders, and bank documents 

and other financial matters for the IERCA. 

 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 

 

On November 1, 2021, the Board approved the designation of Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro as Acting 

Treasurer for the IERCA.   

 

IMPACT ON BUDGET 

 

There is no impact on budget. 



           ACTION 
ITEM 

 2B 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency                                  Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:        November 7, 2022 

 

To:      Honorable Board of Directors 

 

From:      Jeff Ziegenbein 

        Project Manager 

 

   Mike Sullivan 

        Assistant Project Manager  

 

Subject:      Compost Transportation Services Contract Amendments 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

 

1. Approve a contract amendment with an increase of up to $150,000 each with Viramontes 

Express, Inc. and with Eggleton Trucking, Inc. for compost transportation services through 

June 30, 2023;  

 

2. Approve a budget amendment for other contractual services in the amount of $300,000 to 

account for compost transportation contract amendments; and 

 

3. Authorize the Project Manager to finalize and execute the amendments as needed.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) produces approximately 19,000 cubic 

yards of compost per month totaling approximately 230,000 cubic yards per year. IERCA provides 

compost delivery services to customers which typically total approximately 20% of the total 

volume produced. This results in an upfront cost to the Authority which is largely reimbursed by 

compost customers.  

 

On May 3, 2021, the IERCA Board of Directors approved funds for compost transportation 

services to two approved vendors for up to $250,000 per year each for a total of approximately 

$500,000 per year which is typically sufficient to cover all of the upfront transportation expenses. 

The first quarter of this fiscal year is requiring significantly more transportation services than 

expected due to several factors outside of the Authority’s control. These factors have reduced 

demand in the local, landscape market which makes up an average of 80% of sales on a normal 



Compost Transportation Services Contract Amendments 

November 7, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                          Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

year. Factors affecting markets include increased fuel prices, reduced water resources, economic 

uncertainty, and record temperatures all leading to delays or cancellations in landscape projects.  

 

 

Fortunately, the sales team has developed a diverse market portfolio so agricultural customers have 

been secured to accept IERCA compost. These customers are located up to 110 miles away from 

the IERCF and the contracted truckers have implemented fuel surcharges in excess of 30%. These 

factors have consumed a significant portion of the approved $500,000 annual budget but also 

allowed the IERCF to remain operating at full capacity with no production impacts. Chart 1 shows 

the change from the first quarter of this fiscal year versus last.  

 
Chart 1: Increase in agriculture sector 

 
 

The sales team will closely monitor market conditions and quickly transition back to local markets 

as they return to normal and provide updates to the Board at subsequent meetings.  

 

 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 

 

On May 3, 2021, the IERCA Board approved a five-year contract with two one-year renewal 

options with Viramontes Express, Inc. and with Eggleton Trucking, Inc. for compost transportation 

services for an annual total of up to $250,000 each.  

 

IMPACT ON BUDGET  

 

The proposed budget amendment, if approved, will reduce the Authority’s Operating Reserves in 

the amount of $300,000 in FY 2022/23.  

6,017 
11%

46,468 
89%

Q1 FY22 (CYs)

Ag Landscape

42,007 
58%

30,255 
42%

Q1 FY23 (CYs)

Ag Landscape



           ACTION 
ITEM 

 2C 

 



 
 
 
 

tHE 
 

                         
 
 
 
 

 
Date:   November 7, 2022 
 
To:   Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From:   Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro 
   Acting Treasurer  
 
Subject:  Fiscal Year 2022/23 Carry Forward Budget Amendment 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the carry forward for open encumbrances 
and related budget in the amount of $153,552.56 from FY 2021/22 to FY 2022/23. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
An encumbrance is a reservation or earmark of budgeted funds for obligations arising from 
purchase orders, contracts, leases, or approved non-purchase order commitments.  Encumbrances 
improve budgetary control by treating commitments as expenditures and reducing the budget 
amount available for spending. 
 
Encumbrances are not actual expenditures until goods and services are received.  Therefore, 
special treatment is required for open encumbrances when appropriations (budget) lapse at the end 
of the fiscal year.  In this case, encumbrances to be honored in the following fiscal year, along with 
corresponding budget, need to be carried forward.  
 
Staff recommends the carry forward of open encumbrances to be carried forward from FY 2021/22 
to FY 2022/23 in the amount of $153,553. The proposed carry forward amount is comprised of 
$47,707.25 for operations and maintenance expenses and $105,845.31 for capital projects.  The 
capital projects carry forward is related to the following projects: 
 

Project Number Project Name Amount 
RA20005 RCA Capital Replacement $99,220.13 
RA22001 IERCF Column Repair 6,625.18 

Total  $105,845.31 
 
If approved, the FY 2022/23 budget will be increased by the total carry forward amount of 
$153,552.56.  This budget amendment does not change the tipping fees or capital contributions 
approved for FY 2022/23 and are within the Board approved total project budgets.   
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 04E31380-2EF8-4487-9588-52CA8EEE67BD



FY 2022/23 Carry Forward Budget Amendment 
November 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 
 
On June 6, 2022, the Board approved the FY 2022/23 budget. 
 
On February 7, 2022, the Board approved the FY 2021/22 Carry Forward Budget Amendment of 
$544,799.84. 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET 
 
If approved, the FY 2022/23 budget will be augmented by the total carry forward amount of 
$153,552.56.  Future expenditures against this open encumbrance will reduce the IERCA reserve 
balance. 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 04E31380-2EF8-4487-9588-52CA8EEE67BD



           ACTION 
ITEM 

 2D 

 

















) 
)ss 

Resolution No. 2022-11-3 
Page 3 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Jon Blickenstaff, Board Chairperson of the Inland Empire Regional 

Composting Authority, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 

2022-11-3 was duly adopted by the Board of Directors on the 7th day of November 

2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Jon Blickenstaff 
Chairperson 





















INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 3A 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency                                 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Date:   November 7, 2022 

 

To:   Honorable Board of Directors 

 

From:   Jeff Ziegenbein 

   Project Manager 

 

Mike Sullivan 

Assistant Project Manager 

 

Subject:  Project Manager’s Report  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

This is an information item for the Board to receive and file. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Operations 

 

The Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) continued to maintain maximum throughput 

levels processing up to 850 wet tons of biosolids and amendments daily, Monday through Friday each 

week. 

 

Since the last update, the IERCF staff has: 

• Maintained full throughput, surpassing revenue targets 

• Maintained compost sales volumes on pace with production volumes 

• 450 days with no recordable or lost time incidents 

 

Table 1 lists materials processed for the current fiscal year 2022/23, July 1, 2022 – September 30, 2022, 

the same period in the previous fiscal year 2021/2022, and since start-up in April 2007 through September 

30, 2022. 

 

Table 1: Process summary 

 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/20 2007-2022 

Biosolids Processed (wet tons) 39,052 37,397 2,103,352 

Amendments Processed (wet tons) 10,273 12,581 790,182 

Compost Sold (cubic yards) 72,738 52,724 3,285,107 

 

 

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 2 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

Chart 1: 12 months’ inbound & outbound 

 
 

Biofilter Media Replenishment 

 

IERCF operations staff initiated biennial biofilter replenishment. Staff removes each biofilter cell, one at 

a time, blends in approximately 25% new, chunky wood, and then places the mixture back in service. The 

replenishment strategy saves over $500,000 versus full replacement every 3 or 4 years and helps the 

biofilter perform better by keeping the healthy bacteria in place. The activity adds new carbon and porosity 

needed by the bacteria in the biofilter to remove odors and emissions as required by the facility’s air permit 

issued by the South Coast Air Quality Management District. The District’s air rules require that greater 

than 80% of volatile organic compounds and ammonia must be removed by the biofilter. The IERCF 

biofilter typically removes greater than 95% of these compounds satisfying the rule as well as facility-

specific permit conditions. The following photos show the replenishment work.  

 

0.00

2,000.00

4,000.00

6,000.00

8,000.00

10,000.00

12,000.00

14,000.00

16,000.00

18,000.00

20,000.00

IERCF Inbound & Outbound

Biosolids (Inbound) Amendments (Inbound) Compost (Tons Outbound)



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 3 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

  
Preparing biofilter media                                                                                     Installing biofilter media 

 

Liebherr Number 3 

 

IERCF received a third Liebherr loader on September 30, 2022.  There is one more unit being 

manufactured at this time with a tentative delivery time in March of 2023. The four units will provide all 

of the material handling required at the facility for normal production. At least one of the older units is in 

the process of being destroyed as part of a grant with the air district that provided partial funding to 

incentivize the replacement of older units with new ones that have clean burning engines. Updates will be 

provided in future Project Manager reports. The following photo shows the newest Liebherr 566.  

 

 
Liebherr 566 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 4 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

Water Professionals Appreciation Week 

 

October 10th-14th was Water Professionals Appreciation Week. IEUA and IERCA celebrated facility 

Professionals by treating staff to a coffee cart served by Special Needz Coffee, professional headshot 

photos, donuts, and chair massages. It was a week full of showing staff they are appreciated.  

 

 

 
                                                    Coffee cart                                                                                   Professional headshots onsite 
 

Training and Injury Prevention 

 

All staff are taking part in daily stretching exercises to prevent workplace injuries. IERCF staff also 

successfully completed its annual Fire Extinguisher Training on October 11, 2022. 

 

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 5 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

Morning stretch and flex 

 
           Fire extinguisher training 

  

Maintenance/Asset Management 

The maintenance team continues to strive for continuous improvement and reliability-centered 

maintenance strategies. One key element is to track maintenance activities and to share the report with the 

team. The following are reports generated with our maintenance scheduling software called PaSTA. Daily 

operations/maintenance coordination meetings allow the entire team to review completed work, and to 

prioritize work to be completed in the future. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 6 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

CM & PM Comparison  

 
PM and CM compliance measures how successful the staff has been in completing preventive and corrective maintenance 

tasks and, in doing so, opens the door to building better processes, optimizing our maintenance schedule, reducing downtime, 

and using resources more efficiently. Reactive work is measured as a percentage of actual hours planned to determine amount 

of impact to planned schedule hours. This work is determined to be necessary and/or emergency work critical to the 

operations, maintenance, or safety of the assets. Reactive work directly impacts all other metrics negatively and is typically 

avoided when possible. 

Planner Compliance 

 
Planner compliance is a maintenance metric used for determining accuracy in job planning and the effectiveness of scheduled 

maintenance processes. Planner compliance measures the accuracy of planned work order hours completed in comparison to 

actual hours worked. 

 

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 7 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

Schedule Compliance 

 
Schedule compliance is a maintenance metric used for determining productivity and the effectiveness of scheduled 

maintenance processes. Schedule compliance measures the percentage of work orders completed on or before the  

due date over a given period. 

 
Projects 
 

In Process: 

• Over 100 job packages have been built for repeated tasks within SAP. The job packages allow 

the planner to choose from previous tasks for like repairs. SAP then automatically fills in the 

required hours, employees, materials, documents and specifics of what needs to be done.  

• Where applicable the team is switching over some PMs from time based (e.g., Monthly) to 

performance based. For example: Instead of doing a PM on a loader every month to change 

filters and oil, the team established a performance-based plan to generate the PM required based 

on a condition. This can be generated by run hours, temp readings, pressure readings, or results 

from an oil analysis.  

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 8 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

        
                               Repairing an irrigation pipe                                                                             Housekeeping in the basement 

 

Compliance Update 

Staff is continuing to monitor the South Coast Air Quality Management District for updates on the 

proposed Notice of Violation. There has been no activity so there are not any opportunities to discuss or 

dispute the matter at this time.  

 

Recruitment 

IERCF has 3 vacancies to fill.  Two Compost Workers and one Senior Compost Operations and 

Maintenance Technician. Staff is working with the IEUA Human Resources Department to fill the 

positions.  

 

IERCF Outreach and Tours 

IERCA conducted facility tours with the City of Ontario in mid-September to discuss SB1383 

procurement plans. Ten individuals attended the meeting from the City’s Environmental Tech department 

as well as representatives from Senator Portantino Offices.  

 
Tour with City of Ontario and Senator Portantino’s staff 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 9 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

 

        
                  Spreader applies Compost to field                               Compost Delivered to Field                              Before and After Compost Application       

 

Sales and Marketing Report 

  

IERCA continues to service over 100 customers for retail bulk sales, landscaping, turf preparation, nursery 

blends and agricultural use. The quality of SoilPro Compost continues to be the main selling point for 

IERCA. The recent California drought, related turf removal programs and extreme fuel pricing have 

proven to be a challenge for IERCA and our customers prompting the sales team to continue to expand 

sales into agriculture markets. During the 3rd quarter sales were slightly down allowing inventory to 

increase forcing much of the material to be provided to the AG markets. The lower unit cost is primarily 

due to the increase into the agricultural markets. Will call and contract customers are expected to increase 

significantly into the cooler months of Fall allowing for a market shift from AG to landscape. 

 

Association of Compost Producers, also known as ACP, in partnership with IERCF is still actively 

engaged with the newly formed marketing committee with Zero Foodprint to promote and advocate for 

the beneficial use of compost in Agriculture. A plan has been set in place to match up farmers with grant 

funding as well as match them up with Composters via website mapping. Staff members continue to work 

closely with ACP to inform public municipalities of the new Senate Bill 1383 (SB1383) which went into 

effect January 1st, 2022. SB1383 requires organics to be diverted from landfills and jurisdictions to procure 

compost based on their populations. ACP has developed guidelines to help jurisdictions define appropriate 

compost products along with use instructions.  

   

Table 2: Summary of monthly sales and revenue  

MONTH TOTAL YARDS 
2022/2023 

TOTAL YARDS 
2021/2022 

TOTAL REVENUE            
2022/2023 

TOTAL REVENUE            
2021/2022 

July 13,387.04 16,258.57 $23,852.88  $31,638.68  

August 29,189.69 22,280.02 $22,827.43  $42,737.08  

September 30,185.08 14,154.06 $20,939.01  $26,314.64  

TOTAL 72,761.81 52,692.65 $67,619.32  $100,690.40  

AVERAGE 24,253.94 17,564.22 $22,539.77  $33,563.47  

 

 

 



Project Manager’s Report 

November 7, 2022 

Page 10 of 10 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

 

Table 3: Monthly Account Receivable Aging Report for IERCA (7/7/2020) 

 
 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 

 

None. 

 

IMPACT ON BUDGET 

 

None. 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 3B 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency                                 Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  November 7, 2022 

 

To:  Honorable Board of Directors 

 

From:  Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro 

  Acting Treasurer 

    

Subject:          Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Quarter Ended  

  September 30, 2022 

              

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, is an 

informational item for the Board’s review. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

In accordance with State Code, Section 53646(b) (1), and the Authority’s Investment Policy 

(Resolution No. 2022-6-1), a periodic investment report shall be submitted to members of the 

Board for review.  This report includes in part, the investment types, investment institutions, 

maturity dates, investment amount, current market value, and rate of interest/earnings yield. 
 

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the quarter ended September 30, 2022, is hereby 

submitted in a format consistent with State requirements. As shown in the table below, 

September’s total cash, investments, and restricted deposits totaled $5,400,370 reflecting an 

increase of $191,100 when compared to the June balance of $5,209,270. The increase was mainly 

due to higher compost sales receipts.   
 

The Authority’s investment portfolio average rate of return in September 2022 was 0.741 percent 

compared to the June 2022 yield of 0.434 percent, primarily due to the increases in the Los Angeles 

County Pooled Investment and LAIF interest rates. Interest earnings for the quarter ended 

September 30, 2022 were $4,728.00. 
 

 June 
(1) 

September 
(2) 

Changes from 

Prior Quarter 

Total Cash, Investments, Restricted Deposits $5,209,270 $5,400,370 $191,100 

Investment Portfolio Average Rate of Return 0.434% 0.741% 0.307% 

(1) Interest rates for the LA County Pooled Investment as of May 2022 and LAIF as of June 2022 

(2) Interest rates for the LA County Pooled Investment and LAIF as of August 2022  

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D58EF744-89B4-4CDD-9D25-9E0D26C278EA



November 7, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                        Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts 

 

 

Cash on hand (COH) for the month ended September 30, 2022 was 211 days compared to the June 

30, 2022 COH of 223 days, primarily due to higher twelve month rolling cash disbursements. The 

COH is a financial ratio used to measure cash readily available to pay expenses. Average days of 

cash on hand is calculated using the monthly ending balance of unrestricted cash and cash 

equivalents divided by disbursements associated with operating and capital expense as recorded 

in the Authority’s cash flow.  

 

 
 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION 
 

None. 
 

IMPACT ON BUDGET 
 

The interest earned on the Authority’s investment portfolio increases the Authority’s reserves.  

 

 

Attachment: Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for quarter ended September 30, 2022. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D58EF744-89B4-4CDD-9D25-9E0D26C278EA



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

#DIV/0!

* A Joint Powers Authority

TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2022

the Authority's Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2022‐6‐1), adopted by the Inland Empire
Regional Composting Authority's Board of Directors during its regular meeting held on June 6, 2022.

The funds anticipated to be available during the next six‐month period are expected to be
sufficient to meet all foreseen expenditures during the period.

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

Unrestricted Accounts September June

$589,953 $589,424

Investments

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $2,523,260 $2,335,893

LA County Pooled Investment $1,277,390 $1,276,073

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $1,009,767 $1,007,880
Total Investments $4,810,417 $4,619,846

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments Available to the Authority $5,400,370 $5,209,270

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments $5,400,370 $5,209,270

Net Change from previous Quarter $191,100

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

Unrestricted Accounts

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2022

Demand (Checking) Accounts $589,953

Subtotal Demand Deposits $589,953

Total Cash and Bank Investment Accounts $589,953

Investments

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $2,523,260
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $1,009,767
LA County Pooled Investment $1,277,390

$4,810,417

Total Investments $4,810,417

Total Cash, Investments and Restricted Deposits as of September 30, 2022 $5,400,370

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of 9/30/2022 $5,400,370
Less: Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of 6/30/2022 $5,209,270

Total Quarterly Increase (Decrease) $191,100

2



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

Par Principal September % Market
Investments Amount Amount   Amortization  Yield     Value 

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2022

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank
Checking Account $589,953 $589,953 $589,953 N/A $589,953

Subtotal CBB $589,953 $589,953 $589,953 N/A $589,953

Total Unrestricted Accounts $589,953 $589,953 $589,953 $589,953

Investments

Citizens Business Bank Sweep(1) $2,523,260 $2,523,260 $2,523,260 0.250% $2,523,260

LA County Pooled Investment(2) $1,277,390 $1,277,390 $1,277,390 1.630% $1,277,390
Local Agency Investment Fund $1,009,767 $1,009,767 $1,009,767 1.276% $1,009,767

Subtotal Investments $4,810,417 $4,810,417 $4,810,417 0.832% $4,810,417

Total Investments $4,810,417 $4,810,417 $4,810,417 $4,810,417

$5,400,370 $5,400,370 $5,400,370 $5,400,370Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of September 30, 2022

(1) Citizens Business Bank Sweep rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% on July 26, 2022. 
(2) Interest Rate information from LA County Pooled Investment is as of August 2022.

3



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

Unrestricted Accounts
Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Citizens Business Bank - Sweep Account(1) $2,523,260 0.250%

LA County Pooled Investment(2) $1,277,390 1.630%

Local Agency Investment Fund $1,009,767 1.276%
$4,810,417 0.832%

     Bank Accounts
Citizens Business Bank -Demand Account $589,953 N/A

$589,953

Total Portfolio $5,400,370

Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 0.741%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Demand Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Other Accounts $0 0.000%

Total Authority Directed Deposits $5,400,370

(2) Interest Rate information from LA County Pooled Investment is as of August 2022.

(1) Citizens Business Bank Sweep rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% on July 26, 2022. 

4



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 

September 30, 2022

273492

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

Sep‐21 Dec‐21 Mar‐22 Jun‐22 Sep‐22

M
ill
io
ns

CBB Checking & Sweep Account LAIF Investments LA County Pooled Investment

Total	Cash,	Investments and	 Restricted	Deposits

5



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 3C 

 



IERCF AM Update

Ken Monfore

Nov 7, 2022



Asset Management Plans Update

• Distribute to related Departments for internal review for each section = July-September 22’
1. Agency-wide

2. RP-1

3. RP-2

4. CCWRF

5. RP-4

6. RP-5

7. RW & GWR

8. Groundwater Recharge System 

9. IERCF

10. Agency Lift Stations

11. Regional Sewer System

12. Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System

13. Agency Laboratory 

14. Agency Headquarters

15. Business and Process Automation Control Networks. 

• Review Comments and Update Document = October 2022

• Distribute Document for Final Review = November 2022

• Finalize Document = December 2022



• Phase 1a Priority 1 

—Oct 2022: Commenced gap study, 
recommendation, correction SOW

—Feb 2023: Expected completion

• Phase 1a Priority 2. 

—Task Order drafted & under AM review

—Stakeholder input

—Commence ~ Jan 2023

3

AM Initiatives

Priority RP-4 Phase 1

Phase 1a

1 Register Accuracy

2 Criticality Analysis

3 CMMS Data Quality

Phase 1b

4 PM Optimization

5 Operator Driven Reliability

Phase 1c

6 Operator Manual Update

7 Maintenance Manual Update

8 Transition Plans to rest of Agency



New Project Request (This Year’s Time-Line) 

4

Agency Stakeholders

12/1

1/4

11/1

12/15

1/3

2/3

Asset Management (AM) AM + Engineering Finance & Planning

Projects Approved

1/20

2/10

Call for New 
Projects

New Project 
Request Forms

Assess Project 
Request

Final Review 
Meeting

Projects Forward to 
Finance/Planning

Management Review 
of TYCIP

Continuous

Agency Management

Board Approval

6/15

Project Starts

7/1

Dates from Previous Year



5

Predictive Maintenance Program 
Optimization Update

Remote Vibration Monitoring Project (IFB-RW-22-015)

• Bid due Oct 2022

— Scope of work

• Remote application

• Embedded analytics 

• Desktop visualization/interface

— Test Sites

• RP-1 Turblex Blowers

• RP-1 Centrifuge

• RP-4 Neuros Blowers

• RP-1 IPS Pumps

• SBLS Pumps



Thank you!

6

AM Mission


	November 07, 2022- IERCA Board Agenda
	Constent Item 1A- Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-11-01
	Consent Item 1B- August 01, 2022 Board Minutes
	Consent Item 1C- Investment and Disbursement Report
	Action Item 2A- Designation of IERCA Treasurer
	Action Item 2B- Compost Transportation Services Amendment
	Action Item 2C- Fiscal Year 2022/23 Carry Forward Budget Amendment
	Action Item 2D- Adoption of Depository Agreement and Investment Fund Signatory Resolutions
	Information Item 3A- Project Manager's Report
	Information Item 3B- Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Quarter Ended Sept. 30, 2022
	Information Item 3C- Asset Management Update




